10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

Page 1

| LLI NO S POLLUTI ON CONTROL BOARD
June 4, 2026

IN THE MATTER OF

)
)
PROPOSED 35 I LL. ADM CODE ) R 26-17
SUBTI TLE K:  RECYCLABLE, )
RECLAI MABLE, OR REUSEABLE WASTES, )
CHAPTER | POLLUTI ON CONTROL )
BOARD, PART 1220 MANAGEMENT OF )

USED EV BATTERI ES

(Rul emaki ng - Land)

TRANSCRI PT OF PROCEEDI NGS before the
[1l1inois Pollution Control Board, comencing at 9:00
AM on this 4th day of June, 2026, upon the hearing of
t he above-entitl ed case.
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HEARI NG OFFI CER MO SAN: Good Morning. W are
now on the record. And welcone to the Illinois
Pol l ution Control Board Hearing. M nanme is Nerissa
Moi san, and | amthe hearing officer for the Illinois
Pol lution Control Board, also referred to as "IPCB," or
“"the Board" in this rul emaking proceeding. Today,
June 4, 2026, is the second public hearing in the
matter of proposed 35 Illinois Adm nistrative Code,
Subtitle K, Recyclable, Reclainmble, or Reusable
Wast es, Chapter 1, Pollution Control Board, Part 2012
[sic], Managenent of Used EV Batteries. The Board
docket nunber for this rulemking is Rule 26-17. This
hearing is being conducted in person in Chicago and
Springfield, Illinois, and via videoconference between
the two | ocations.

| will begin with the Board
I ntroductions. Wth ne in Chicago are Board Menber
Angela Tin, the Board's |ead nenber for this docket.
Board Chair Mchelle G bson, Board Menber Jennifer Van
W e, Chief Environnental Scientist Anand Rao, and
Envi ronment al Sci enti st Essence Brown. Additional
Board staff are also in the audi ence.

There are sign-in sheets avail abl e at

both in-person | ocations for anyone wi shing to provide
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testinony or public coment.

We will proceed with appearances for
the record. Wuld those present in Chicago outside of
t he Board pl ease state their nanes and affiliations for
t he record.

MR. DELL" AQUILA: Trevor Dell' Aquila, assistant
counsel for the Illinois Environmental Protection
Agency.

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN: Vi shnu Sri ni vasaraghavan,
mat eri al s managenent and conpliance secti on manager.

M5. CLARK: Cassandra Clark. |'mthe program
adm ni strator (Executive |I) for materials nmanagenent
and conpl i ance.

HEARI NG OFFI CER MO SAN:  Thank you. Wbuld those
in Springfield please state their nanes and
affiliations for the record, as well.

A. Jonat han Eastvold, regulatory flexibility
manager at DCEO.

HEARI NG OFFI CER MO SAN:  Thank you.

MS. COOPERI DER: Jacki --

HEARI NG OFFI CER MO SAN: ' m sorry.

MS. COOPERI DER: Sorry.

HEARI NG OFFI CER MOl SAN: Sorry. Go ahead.

MS. COOPERI DER: Jacki e Cooperider, deputy chief
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for the Division of Land Pollution Control.

HEARI NG OFFI CER MO SAN:  Thank you. And will the
| EPA -- Illinois Environnmental Protection Agency --
pl ease identify its witness for the record.

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN: Vi shnu Sri ni vasar aghavan.

HEARI NG OFFI CER MO SAN:  Thank you. We will now
continue with a brief procedural history of this
rul emaking. The Illinois Environnental Protection
Agency, also known as "the | EPA " or "the Agency,"
filed this rul emaki ng proposal with the Board on
January 2, 2026, which the Board accepted for hearing
by order -- a hearing officer order dated January 29,
2026. The Board established this procedural schedul e
for this proceeding, including prefiling requirenments
for testinony questions and answers, and set this
matter for two hearings. Notice of these hearings was
publ i shed in accordance with the Board's procedural
rules in newspapers in the Chicago and Springfield
areas on or before February 1, 2026.

The first hearing was held on March 19,

2026, in person in Springfield and Chicago and by
vi deoconference between the two | ocati ons and proceeded
based on prefiled testinony fromthe | EPA and prefil ed

guestions fromthe Board. Prefiled answers were due
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March 10, 2026 at 9:00 AM The IEPA filed its prefiled
answers on March 19, 2026, after the hearing commenced.
The filing was accepted into the record at the hearing.
No ot her participants submtted prefiled testinony,
guestions, or answers for the first hearing. A
transcript of the first hearing was filed on April 1,
2026.

I n a subsequent hearing officer order
dated March 16, 2026, the Board nenorialized the first
hearing and restated the procedural schedule for this
proceedi ng i ncludi ng deadlines for subm ssions and for
t he second hearing. The Board al so requested that the
Depart nent of Commerce and Econom ¢ Opportunity, also
known as DCEO, conduct an econom c inpact study of the
proposed rul e pursuant to Section 27(b) of the
Environnmental Protection Act, also referred to as "the
Act." DCEO s response was filed on April 7, 2026.
| EPA filed supplenmental responses in an anended
proposed part 1220 on May 6, 2026.

For the second hearing, no participant
prefiled testinony or exhibits. On May 19th, the Board
| ssued additional prefiled questions. No other
partici pant prefiled questions for this second hearing.

Prefil ed answers were due May 26, 2026, at 9:00 AM and
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| EPA filed its prefiled answers on June 2, 2026, | ust
prior to the close of filing. The subm ssion consists
of approxi mately 83 pages including attachnents. G ven
the timng of the filing, there was limted opportunity
for board review prior to this hearing. No other
participant filed prefiled answers for the second
hearing. All filings in this proceedi ng were nade
avai |l abl e through the Board's Clerk Ofice On-Line or
COOL systemin Rul emaki ng Docket R 26-17 as they were
filed.

Before proceeding further, | wll
identify certain filings for purposes of today's
hearing record. Hearing Exhibit Nunber 1 is the | EPA
suppl enental responses and anended proposed part 1220,
filed on May 6, 2026. Hearing Exhibit Nunmber 2 is the
Board's prefiled questions, issued May 19, 2026.
Hearing Exhibit Nunber 3 is the Illinois | EPA's
prefiled answers, filed June 2, 2026. Hearing Exhibit
Nunber 4 is DCEO s response regarding the econoni c
| npact study, filed April 7, 2026. Hearing Exhibits 2
and 3 are entered into the record as if read. Absent
obj ection, Hearing Exhibits 1 through 4, are admtted
into the record.

| will next outline the procedures
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governing this proceeding. This hearing is governed by
the Board's procedural rules, including Section 102.42,
whi ch provides that rel evant nonrepetitive and
nonprivileged information will be admtted into the
record. The purpose of this hearing is to develop a
conplete adm nistrative record for the Board's
consi deration of the proposed rul emaki ng. Please note
t hat questions posed by the Board and its staff are
i ntended solely to assist in developing a clear and
conplete record. They do not reflect any determ nation
or judgnent on the proposal, the testinony, or any
other matter. This proceeding is being recorded by a
court reporter, and a transcript will becone part of
the official record. Please speak clearly and avoid
speaki ng over others.

| will now address the procedures
governing testinmony and public coment. At this
hearing, individuals may participate through testinony
or public coment, as applicable. Testinony is sworn
and consists of evidence offered for the record.
Wt nesses providing testinony may be questioned by the
Board and ot her participants. Public comment is
unsworn and all ows participants to present opinions,

perspectives, or statenents. The Board nmay ask
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clarifying questions. Under Section 102.424(f),
testinony, not prefiled, may be presented today, if
time allows, and will not prejudice others. O herw se,
It may be accepted into the record as public comment or
written subm ssion. If any participant who has not
prefiled testinony whishes to present sworn testinony
today, the Board will determ ne whether such testinony
may be received consistent with the hearing officer
order and applicable procedural requirenents.

Counsel may present argunent and
respond to questions on procedural or legal matters,
and is not required to be sworn when doing so. |If
counsel or any other participant offers factual
testinony, the record may be paused, as necessary, and
oath requirenents addressed. Witten public coments
may be submtted through the Board's COOL system
Witten and oral public comment are given equa
consi deration by the Board.

Now I will outline the order of
proceedi ngs for today's hearing. The proposed schedul e
is as follows: We will begin with any wi tnesses who
did not prefile testinmony, who wish to testify today,
foll owed by questions fromthe Board regarding the

existing -- questions regarding the existing record.
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W will then proceed with public coment. There wl|l
al so be an opportunity for testinony or comment on the
DCEO request and response. W will conclude with any
adm nistrative matters and closing remarks. A recess
Is anticipated at approximtely 10:45 AM for the Board
meeting with the hearing expected to resune at
approximately 11:30 AM Additional recesses, including
a lunch recess, may be taken as necessary. Are there
any questions before we begin?

(No audi bl e response.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER MOl SAN:  Hearing none, we w l
now proceed with any testinony. |Is there anyone
present here today who did not prefile testinony but
does wish to offer testinony?

(No audi bl e response.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER MO SAN: At this tinme, we wll
proceed with the IPEA's witness. | ask the court
reporter to adm ni ster the oath.

(Wtness duly sworn.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER MO SAN:  Woul d you pl ease state
and spell your name for the record, and identify your
title and affiliation.

MR. SRl NI VASARAGHAVAN: Vi shnu
Srinivasaraghavan -- V-1-S-H- N U
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SRI-NI-V-A-S-A-RA-GHA-V-A-N -- materials
managenment and conpliance section nmanager for Illinois
EPA Bureau of Land.

HEARI NG OFFI CER MO SAN:  Thank you. We will
proceed with questions regarding the record. CQutside
of the Board, is there anyone who has any questions for
the agency's w tness?

(No audi bl e response.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER MO SAN: Hearing none, | will ask
Board Menber Tin if you have any questions.

MEMBER TIN:. Generic questions? O just going
down the list? O --

HEARI NG OFFI CER MOl SAN: However you want to
handle it.

MEMBER TIN: Just going down the list, | wll
have questi ons.

HEARI NG OFFI CER MO SAN:  Ckay. |In response to
the Board's prefiled questions, the | EPA had their
responses, which we have read into the record -- have
accepted into the record as if read. |If Board
Mermber Tin or any other board nmenbers have questions as
we go, |I'mnot going to read theminto the record
today, but if you have any specific follow up, please

feel free to ask now.
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MEMBER TIN: Just -- nmy first question is
regardi ng NFPA 800. The fire marshal said that it
woul d be finalized sonetine in 2026. So | was
wondering if and when it is finalized, would the agency
I ncorporate those into the rules? That's ny first
guestion. And the second question is what woul d happen
to the existing citation that was in there previously?

MR. SRI Nl VASARAGHAVAN:  So we woul d review the
new 800 rul es when they conme out and then decide from
t here whether they need to be incorporated. And if
there's going to be any replacenents based on the old
citation, we would nmake that determ nation.

MEMBER TIN:. And that's the same thing that's
true of the -- there were sone addenduns -- the
I nsurance addenduns. There were three insurance
addenduns. And you had commented that these addenduns
were mainly for insurance and preventative, but you
woul d still consider themfor inclusion at a |later
date, --

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN: That's correct.

MEMBER TIN: -- if necessary.

MR. SRI Nl VASARAGHAVAN: We' ve been consulting
with industry experts on which portions of those would

be nost rel evant for our use. And we did take sone
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I nput. But at the end of the day, we feel the NFPA
codes set the m ni mum standards, and there's nothing
st oppi ng a business from goi ng towards those standards
I f they choose. But at this point, we are not going to
be incorporating them But we may incorporate them at
a | ater date, based on the industry experts' comments.
MEMBER TIN. There was sone use of certain

words -- definitions that | did not see listed as a
definition. I'minterested in a definition for

"“defl agration,

MEMBER VAN WE: Angela, are you referencing a

“thermal runaway. "

particul ar question?

MEMBER TIN:. I'minterested if Illinois EPA would
put in the definition of "thermal runaway" and
"defl agration.”

MEMBER VAN WE: Right. But is that in reference
to a particular question that you didn't feel |ike was
answered or --

MEMBER TIN: This is just in -- this was a new
guestion that | had.

MEMBER VAN WE: Thank you.

MEMBER TIN. As | read nore -- and then as the
use of those words becane incorporated nore --

MEMBER VAN WE: Right.

Veritext Lega Solutions
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MEMBER TIN:. -- in their proposed changes.

MEMBER VAN WE: OCkay. Thank you.

MEMBER TIN:  Thank you.

MR. SRl NI VASARAGHAVAN: So just to be clear about
It. You want it to be defined.

MEMBER TIN. Yes, Please.

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN: Ckay. (Sinultaneous
speaki ng.)

MEMBER TIN:. Yes, please. Because there's so
many definitions out there, depending on who is using
it. And if | didn't know the definition of it, then
the public would usually not know al so.

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN: That's a fair point. W
w il take that into consideration.

MEMBER TIN:. This is a question that was not
asked before. | think you, kind of, referenced it in
some of your proposed changes. But I'minterested in
If you use a rack or a stack or even if you just use
any type of a sprinkler system those systens are
generally for regular fires, and a battery fire may
have a | ot nore need for water. So will there be a
requi rement -- and you may have included it -- for
enough pressure in the lines to make sure that there's

enough water at each of the spigots?
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MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN: That's the -- so we -- we
have -- we've been consulting with the industry experts
on the best way to deal with these and the safest way
to store them For right now, our rules basically
specify that for a single room-- if you have a single
sprinkler system we're not going to |let you go nore
than a single-pallet height. And then fromthere, if
you would like to store them higher, you need to store
themin a rack storage systemw th per rack fire
suppression. W did not specify specific pressures for
the lines. W were really going to lean on the fire
departnments to come and inspect those, but we can
definitely take that into consideration to try to
I ncl ude that.

MEMBER VAN WE: Angela, | kind of have a
follow-up to that.

MEMBER TI N  Yes.

MEMBER VAN WE: |Is the Illinois EPA actively
consulting with the fire marshal on the issue rel ated
to fire suppression and things like that? O are they
just relying on the fire marshal to make comments based
on what's going on in the rul emaking.

MR. SRI Nl VASARAGHAVAN: So far we've only

received comments fromthe state fire marshal. But we

Veritext Lega Solutions
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have a consulting with the Morris -- City of Mrris
Fire Chief along with another industry expert that he
suggested for us to talk to as well.

MEMBER VAN W E: Okay.

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN. So we are -- those were
our primary sources for our industry experts. But
we're certainly open to engage nore with the fire
mar shal

MEMBER VAN WE: Ckay.

MEMBER TIN. Previously, at the other hearing, |
had asked a question about SIC classification, and the
notes came up with saying "SIP" classification, and |
meant "SI C' classification. And | want to al so add
MSDS requirenents. So are those -- have those been
considered and will you consider those -- MSDS sheets
and SIC classification requirenents?

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN: We can certainly consider
t hose.

MEMBER TIN:. Oh. And on your |ist of

definitions, you know, | had asked for, could you also
i nclude "fire" -- what is a "fire" and what is an
"expl osion."

MR. SRl NI VASARAGHAVAN: We can definitely take
t hat --
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MEMBER TIN: Thank you. |If they're stored in
containers -- or even outside -- if they're stored in
containers, are these containers expected to have
enough capacity if there's a fire event to contain the
runoff fromthe fire?

MR. SRI Nl VASARAGHAVAN: Are you saying is it
going to contain -- okay. So if |'m understanding your
guestion correctly, this is a specific situation where
a container storing batteries, it has a suppression
systeminside the container, and in the event of a fire
or thermal runaway, the suppression system goes off,
and -- are you asking if the container is going to
contain that runoff --

MEMBER TI N:  Yes.

MR. SRl NI VASARAGHAVAN: -- from the suppression?

MEMBER TIN: Yes. The container or the pad if
it's a di ke pad.

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN: So for -- the container

shoul d be able to contain it, you know, until it
overfills. It's still going to have sone sort of
ventilation on it. So if the container is overal

basically closed, it should contain it. But we don't
have provisions for that specifically. So we can

definitely take that into consideration. And for an
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out door storage on a di ke, you know, on a pad, we can
definitely |l ook at that.

MEMBER TIN: The di ki ng.

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN: Yeah. Diking. W can
| ook at that. You' re speaking simlar to what a
refinery would do?

MEMBER TIN. Yes. Yes. Yes. Yes. The -- and |
did notice your ventilation. That was a very good
comrent to include in here. Yes.

I n sonme of your sections you had tal ked
about "any fire" or "explosion,” and in those
sentences, can you al so include "thermal runaway,"
pl ease.

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN: Yes. W can certainly do
t hat .

MEMBER TIN: On a thermal runaway situation, |
have heard that once an incident occurs and there is a
fire, once the fire is put out, there may be instances
where the fire will reignite in other batteries,
whether it's thermal runaway or not, due to the heat
still being in the room |[Is that being considered
out side of the thermal runaway, for exanple, as part of
the incident report? Wuld the owner/operator, once

the fire is put out, be required to stay there a few
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hours, m nutes, whatever, to nmake sure that other parts
are not reigniting?

MR. SRI Nl VASARAGHAVAN: That's -- we don't
explicitly require that, but that's sonething we can
take into consideration. And just so it's clear on the
record, | nmean, you can, for a thermal runaway event --
you can have a thermal runaway that -- before it
actually starts a fire. You can also have a situation
where the thermal runaway starts a fire in one battery
or it starts a fire in a secondary battery. So you can
have all kinds of different situations. And part of
our reasoning for the ventilation too, after we
consulted with our industry experts, was to try to vent
off sonme of those harnful gases that could cause that
chain reaction.

MEMBER TIN:. The -- | also noted that the -- you
changed the | anguage to include that the batteries were
intact. | think that is a good provision. Because
fromwhat | understand, a |lot of the fires are caused
because of damaged batteries. So you're going to
exclude that fromthe very begi nning.

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN: That's correct. Yes.

MEMBER TIN: The battery energy storage systens

that were a part of the Act -- so you |left a "Reserved"
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in order to address it Iin the future.

MR. SRl NI VASARAGHAVAN: That's correct. Yeah.

They are not part of this scope specifically -- what we

are di scussing today.

MEMBER TIN: But you did include the autonotive
facilities?

MR. SRI NIl VASARAGHAVAN:  Yes. Yes.

MEMBER TIN. That was part of that rule -- that
Act -- autonotive parts recycling.

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN:  Yes.

MEMBER TIN:. And that autonotive parts recycler
woul d only apply to the -- above the threshol d?

MR. SRI Nl VASARAGHAVAN: That's correct. Yeah.

MEMBER TIN: So --

MR. SRl NI VASARAGHAVAN:  Yeah. If you have nore
than -- if you're storing nore than 5,000 kil ograns,
then you would be required to show the --

MEMBER TIN:. And so if soneone was not an
autonotive recycler, they could still store sone
batteries until they reach the threshol d?

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN: That's correct.

MEMBER TIN:. | think that's all the questions |
have.

HEARI NG OFFI CER MO SAN:  Thank you, Menber Tin,
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Are there any additional questions from
any of the Board nenbers?

MEMBER VAN WE: | had a question on Question 21
related to the environnental justice. Whether Illinois
EPA intends to incorporate any environnmental justice
consi derations. Does the passage of the new EJ | aw
| npact that assessnent at all? | know that just got
passed as well. So it's not |ike you've had tinme to
think about it in this context, but | just didn't know
i f that broader EJ requirenment would inpact this
specifically, so.

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN:  We were going to consult
with our in-house EJ expert. But right now, EJ
concerns are not within the scope of this because we're
just going to be regulating nost facilities the sane no
matter what. You know, take the sanme priority of
action -- swift actions, whether it's in an EJ
community or not. But we are certainly willing to
consult our EJ expert to see if parts of that new rule
are applicable to this.

MEMBER VAN WE: Thank you.

MR. RAO May | ask a followup on the EJ issue?

HEARI NG OFFI CER MO SAN:  Yes, M. Rao.

MR. RAG In your response to sone of the Board
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guestions, you indicated that the agency is going to
treat any facility located in an EJ comunity sane as a
community | ocated el sewhere. The whole intent of

gi ving special concern to EJ, you know, environnental
justice communities is because of the disparity between
generally located facilities and facilities located in
environmental justice communities. So are you saying
that what you're inplenmenting is as stringent as
possi bl e for everybody, or should there be speci al
concern for facilities located in EJ conmunities,
right? You know, right now, this is not an issue in
terns of there's not hundreds of these facilities, but
if many of these facilities start popping up in EJ
communities, you know, that was a concern that we were
asking this question for to see how the agency woul d
address that.

MR. SRl NI VASARAGHAVAN: Sure. So we appreciate
your question. And to clarify, we see this as a public
safety issue. So we will be treating all of these --
any incidents at these facilities wll be treated in a
stringent, high-priority manner because of the severity
of the thermal runways or, you know, any fires that can
happen. So that was our intent. Just basically say

we're always going to treat this with, you know,
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hi gh-priority enforcenment. But we are certainly
willing to consider whether even nore stringent
requi rements should be there for EJ communities.

MR. RAG Okay. | appreciate it. Thank you

MEMBER TIN:  Anot her followup question. Thank
you for including this EPA docunent on battery | abeli
gui del i nes. Have you seen the EPA docunent on fires
frombattery facilities?

MR. SRI Nl VASARAGHAVAN: | have. | have seen
t hat .

MEMBER TIN:. Ckay. Because in one of those --
one of -- that's a good report. In one of those they
menti oned using concrete to put out the fire because
the water was not --

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN: That's correct. So for
nost of these battery fires, water is basically just
about the worst thing you can do because the oxygen
fromthe water basically keeps fueling the fire. So
there's been, you know, all kinds of creative solutio
to try to control thermal runaway events and even
controlled fires. One of themincluded concrete as t
EPA said. There's also been housing the batteries
with, you know, a sand-type material, basically, you

know, surrounding it with silica. And then what that

ng

in
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silica does is essentially nelts around the battery to
contain it. So that's another creative solution. And
obviously there's also sone exotic firefighting foans
that are com ng out now that could help with that as
well. But our rules are not really getting into
regul ati ng specific technol ogi es because we want to
remai n open for those innovations.

MEMBER TIN:  Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER MOl SAN: Are there any additional
guestions fromthe Board's technical unit?

MR. RAG  Yeah. A couple of questions. 1In
response to Question 13. This is the question relating
to any potential requirenments on transporters. And you
had i ndicated that Part 1220 is not regul ating
transporters. And the information on the battery
tracking receipts that the storage facility is supposed
to collect -- if the transporter doesn't have any
I nformation that are listed in, | think,

Section 1220.510(a). Now, how would the storage site
generate that information? Like, specifically, | was

t hi nking of -- you had said, if there's no information
about battery chem stry, maybe the nake, nodel, and
year of the vehicle would suffice because then you can,

you know, find out what the battery chem stry is. So
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there has to be sone information that has to be on the
receipt. So if the transporter does not provide it, is
It something that the storage site can generate just by
I nspecting the battery? Wuld they be able to do that?

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN: So we actually consulted
with our industry expert on this exact question because
we are not regulating the transporters, and so we
didn't want to have these rules basically go beyond the
scope of what we're trying to do --

MR. RAO  Yeah.

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN: -- and go towards the
transporters. And from what we found fromthe industry
experts, there is a way, yes. There's still always a
serial nunber or sonething that is an identifying
mar ker on the battery. A lot of these storage
facilities, especially if they're autonotive
dismantlers or recyclers are probably going to have
sonme sort of subscription to ALLDATA, which is, you
know, for auto -- in the autonotive space, ALLDATA is
basically a big repair database that gives you all the
manual s and part nunbers for all your different OEM
parts. And so if, you know, an autonotive recycler has
access to a database |like that, they should be able to

punch in the serial nunber fromthe battery to obtain
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I nformati on on that battery.

MR. RAG Could you clarify this in the rules,
Itself, so that soneone |looking at it -- like a storage
site, they know if they don't receive the information,
how to find -- they could find it.

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN:. That it's basically on
them Yes.

MR. RAO  Okay.

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN: Sure. We can definitely
clarify and | ook into that.

MR. RAG In response to Question 17 -- let ne go
to that question. Actually it's Question 36. |'m
sorry.

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN: |s it 367

MR. RAO. Yeah. Question 36. In your response
you had suggested sonme changes to the definition of
"used EV battery.” One of the things you added was the
| ast sentence. It says, "This term does not include
any that are damaged, cracked, or leaking." And I
think in Question 45 another term canme up which is
"defective battery.” So you had indicated that this
amendnent to the definition will address the concern
about defective batteries. | just want to make sure

"damaged, cracked, or |eaking batteries” also includes

WWw.veritext.com
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"defective battery." Because "defective" is a term
t hat can be nuch broader in sense.

MR. SRl NI VASARAGHAVAN: And you are -- yes, |
think we need to probably go back and clarify that a
little bit. Because, to your point, yes, you're
correct that a defective battery could still be fully
I ntact --

MR. RAO Yes.
MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN: -- with all it cells

I nt act. And there's an electrical connection that's in

there that's maybe defective that's not allow ng the
battery to work. So we can definitely take that into
consi derati on.

RAOC. Either anend the definition --

SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN:  Yes.

RAO -- to include defective or --

SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN:  Separate --

3333

RAO. Okay. Thank you very nuch.
MEMBER TIN:. Whuld that include recalled
batteries?

MR. SRl NI VASARAGHAVAN: If it's -- so we can

definitely look into that. W -- for our other battery

prograns, this has been a difficult area for us to

navi gate. When is a recalled battery -- damaged,
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defective? When does it get treated as hazardous
waste? So we -- that's sonething that we woul d | ook
into just to be consistent with our other prograns.

MEMBER TIN. O it's just manufacturer recall and
It | ooks absolutely fine.

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN: Mm hmm Ri ght .

MEMBER VAN WE: Are there any requirenents
related to storing batteries that are danaged, cracked,
or | eaking that -- even outside of this rul emaki ng?

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN: Well, generally, for a
battery that's danaged, cracked, or |leaking, it goes to
t he hazardous waste.

MEMBER VAN WE: [It's expected.

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN:  Yeah.

MEMBER VAN W E: Okay.

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN: |t's -- that's right.

But so that's why we, kind of, took it out of this.
Because we really didn't want operators to be storing,
you know, pallets of damaged, defective, |eaking
batteries that were just nost |likely going to catch on
fire.

MEMBER VAN W E: Under st ood.

MR. RAC. Essence has a question.

M5. BROWN:. Ckay. | have a question on battery
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chem stry. So have you guys evaluated if, |iKke,
different battery chemstries affect how the fires are
put out? And will they be sorted into different parts
of a facility to address that?

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN: So we have been
consulting with our experts -- industry experts on
trying to figure out how different battery chem stries
can catch on fire and thermal runaway conditions and
everything else. Qur rules are basically trying to

address the lithiumion, chem stries, especially with

the nickel one -- | believe it's the nickel-lithium
i ons which are the nost likely to catch on fire. So
our rules -- ventilation requirenments, everything was

built around those.

M5. BROWN: Okay.

MR. SRl NI VASARAGHAVAN:  And ot her battery
chem stries, fromwhat we could tell and fromtestinony
fromour -- frominput fromour industry experts,
suggests that these other battery chem stries are
actually a little bit safer. So we kind of wote these
rul es around the worst case scenari o.

M5. BROMN: Okay. So followup to that. So if
lithium batteries and nickel batteries are stored in

the same part of the facility, would that affect
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the way you put the fire out or -- do you see what |'m
asking? Like, are we separate -- is it |like a thing
where nickel batteries are in this part of the facility
and lithiumare in a different part of the facility?

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN: The rules right now are
not segregating it like that.

MS. BROWN:  Okay.

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN: But that's sonething we
can definitely take into consideration.

M5. BROWN: Ckay.

MR. SRI Nl VASARAGHAVAN:  And consult with our
i ndustry experts if that's warranted.

MS. BROWN:. Ckay. All right. 1 don't have any
nore questions.

HEARI NG OFFI CER MO SAN:  Again, | wll ask if
there are any additional questions for the agency's
W t nesses or witness, | should say.

(No audi bl e response.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER MO SAN. Ckay. You know what, |
actually have. Anyone in the staff, also, please feel
free. Just really quick for clarification on the
hearing transcript. There's been reference to
guestions, and that is in reference to Exhibit

Number 3, the IEPA' s prefiled answers.
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Addi tionally, just a quick note for the
record, | EPA stated in question -- in response to
question 35(e) that it had reserved space for future
amendnents. However, the "reserved for anmendnent
subparts" were -- were renoved before first notice in
response to adm nistrative review coments, which
I ndi cated future anmendnents nay be added when needed,
but they cannot be reserved in advance. So just for
clarity.

And then it is my understandi ng that
| EPA is working on various draft fornms. | believe
there's an update regarding the financial assurance
forms. And then there's a note as well in response to
Question 51 that says, you know, when they becone
avail abl e, as soon as possible, we'll deal with that.
What happens if the forns that are necessary for this
rul emaki ng aren't quite ready when the rul emaki ng goes
into effect by the end of the year? |Is there a plan so
t hat people who are trying to conply with the rule know
all the guidance they essentially need?

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN: Yeah. We would try to
reach out to them And we would also be willing to
consult with anyone who would reach to us.

HEARI NG OFFI CER MO SAN: Ckay. Great. Thank

Veritext Lega Solutions

WWw.veritext.com 888-391-3376



© 00 N o 0o b~ W N B

N NN NN R R R R R R R R R R
A WO N P O ©O 0O N O O B W N +—» O

Page 32

you.

MR. SRI Nl VASARAGHAVAN:  And |'d also like to add
t hat, you know, our goal is to try to have an
el ectronic portal for registration. That's to ease
everything. But in the -- for the tinme being, probably
nost |ikely do a paper registration, which should be
easy for us to get out.

HEARI NG OFFI CER MO SAN: Ckay. Great. Thank
you.

MR. RAG Yes. | have a foll ow up.

HEARI NG OFFI CER MO SAN: Pl ease.

MR. RAG | just saw an e-mail with the draft
forms on it. W haven't taken a good | ook at the
| anguage of the forns. So are these generic fornms for
all non -- progranms, or is it just specific to this
rul e.

MR. SRI Nl VASARAGHAVAN: This -- these forns were
specific to this rule, but they do follow the format of
(si mul taneous speaking) --

MR. RAO Right. Because | didn't see anywhere
"used EV battery facility" nentioned, at least in ny
cursory review.

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN: Yeah. They're not

I ncl uded by nanme on these forns.
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RAC. Okay. WIIl they be eventually?
SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN:  We coul d | ook into

MR. RAOC  Ckay.

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN: If we have to. Yeah.
Because right now the agency was actual ly going through
a big, you know -- to conply with their accessibility
requi renments, we actually went through and essentially
redid all our fornms for financial assurance.

MR. RAO  Ckay.

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN:  That was our first
priority.

MR. RAG All right. | have not | ooked at this
applicability of financial assurance recently. Does
this apply only to registered facilities or all
facilities?

MR. SRl NI VASARAGHAVAN: So right now it applies
to all facilities. However, consulting with industry
expert and all -- industry experts and al so any i nput
that we get fromthe Board and public coment,
possibly. W are looking in to see -- we are trying to
figure out if there's going to be sone targeted
exenptions that we can give snmaller operators.

MR. RAG Okay. So when it cones to, |ike, the
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I nformation about a facility in this form you have:
The "Facility Name," "Bureau of Land |ID Nunmber," things
| i ke that -- so every facility will get that BOL ID
number or is it only the registered facilities?

MR. SRI Nl VASARAGHAVAN: All registered facilities
will get a BOL | D nunber.

MR. RAO What about the facilities which are not
regi stered? Financial assurance applies to all
facilities.

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN: Are you -- sorry. To
clarify, are you saying registration with us or
registration with secretary of state?

MR. RAG Registration under this rule.

MR. SRl NI VASARAGHAVAN: Ckay. Yeah. So if they
regi stered under this rule, then they would receive a
BOL | D nunber.

MR. RAG If they're not -- if they don't neet
the 5,000-kilogramthreshold --

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN:  Well, right now the
registration is still there for everyone, | believe.

MR RAC Is it for everyone?

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN: Oh, that's right. No,
no. Sorry. M mstake. So for right now, yes, you're

right. The registration is only for everyone
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5,000 kil ograns and above. We are considering making
the registration for everyone to be able to track this
nore effectively.

MR. RAOC  Ckay.

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN: Because we did identify
that was a -- that was a hole in conpliance that we
were not going to be able to fill.

MR. RAG Okay. |It's just, you know, if you do
make it applicable to all facilities, will you address
this in your posthearing coments or for those
anmendnents to cone in?

MR. SRI Nl VASARAGHAVAN:  Yes. We will.

MR RAGC So will there be sone facility may not
i ke that idea? And what recourse wll they have if
it's already posthearing? | was just curious.

MR. SRl NI VASARAGHAVAN: That's why we're
considering in the registration formif they can try to
file for an exenption if they're a smaller operation.
If their main |ine of business is not storing used EV
batteries -- for exanple, they' re just an autonotive
shop who happens to -- you know, repair cars and, you
know, take out batteries every now and then -- then
they could -- we're |l ooking into a provision for them

to apply for an exenption to alleviate that concern.
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MR RAO So we'll take a good | ook at the forns.

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN:  Sur e.

MR. RAO If we have anything -- we may have
questions for you --

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN:. OF cour se.

MR RAO -- in witing.

MEMBER TIN: Especially the registration for the
smal | er ones. Because the way the rules are witten
here, you could cone in, but then you could go out, and
so if you at | east had a nunber assigned to them you
coul d see, you know, where they are.

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN: That's correct, Menber
Tin. Yeah. That's exactly why we were | ooking to
change this.

MEMBER TIN:. Yes. And if you do include an
exenption, would that be witten into the rule?

MR. SRl NI VASARAGHAVAN: Mbst i kely, yes.

MEMBER TIN: Okay.

HEARI NG OFFI CER MO SAN: Ms. Tipsord.

MS. TIPSWORD: Hi. Marie Tipsord, general
counsel. It's ny understanding, | believe, this rule
has al ready been published for first notice in the
I1linois Register; is that correct?

HEARI NG OFFI CER MO SAN:  Yes.
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MS. TIPSWORD: Okay. You're talking about adding
a whol e category of people to registration after this
rul e has been published for first notice. So ny
question to you -- Anand, kind of, hinted at it -- ny
guestion to you is how do we explain to the joint
committee on admnistrative rules this extensive of an
addi tion. Because do you know how many people that nmay
I nvol ve? Are we talking five? Are we tal king 5007
And they will not have had a chance to coment on any
of the provisions that they may or nmay not be subject
to dependi ng on what the registration is that you
decide to have. So sonmething you need to keep in m nd
if you're tal king about that substantive of a change,
which, to nme, it seens like that's a pretty substantive
change to add to a category. You're going to need to
justify it pretty fully legally as well as technically
so that if the Board were to decide to go ahead, they
woul d need to explain why this change occurred after
publication of first notice.

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN. We will definitely take
that into consideration.

HEARI NG OFFI CER MO SAN:  Yes. Menber Van We.

MEMBER VAN WE: Are you -- | presune that the

definitions of "owner and operator” al so include any
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state agencies; is that correct? Typically? As a, you
know, owner and operator usually includes --

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN: Yeah. Froma --
(si mul taneous speaking.) Yes.

MEMBER VAN WE: -- state agencies. Are you

aware of any state agencies that may fall under the

5,000 or nore category -- Departnment of Transportation,
anything like that -- where this would be applicable to
t hen?

MR. SRI Nl VASARAGHAVAN: We are not aware at this
point, but |I can -- | can inmagine that the two biggest
agencies that this would be applicable to would be
Departnent of Transportation and then CMS. Because
t hey operate a fleet of vehicles, basically, across the
entire state, and they operate the CMS garages as well.

MEMBER VAN WE: And so it's safe to assune that
t hese requirenents would be al so applicable to state
agencies -- that would be the intent.

MR. SRI NI VASARAGHAVAN:  Correct.

MEMBER TIN: But you did exenpt nunicipalities.
s that not correct? Wasn't there an exenption for the
muni ci palities? A new exenption. | thought I read
t hat .

MR. SRI Nl VASARAGHAVAN: |'m not sure we have that
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in here now W can certainly look at that. So it
| ooks |ike they are exenpt from financial assurance.

MEMBER TIN: Okay.

MR. SRl NI VASARAGHAVAN: But they are not exenpt
fromthe rules

MEMBER TIN. Ckay.

HEARI NG OFFI CER MOl SAN: Does anyone el se have
any additional questions?

(No audi bl e response.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER MO SAN: Hearing none, we w l
proceed with public comment. |s there anyone present
here today who wi shes to provide public comrent?

(No audi bl e response.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER MO SAN:  Ckay. Hearing none, we
w ||l proceed to the DCEO econom ¢ i npact study request
and response. Section 27(b) of the Act provides that
t he Board nust request that DCEO conduct an econonic
| npact study of proposed rules before the Board adopts
the rules. The Board nust make either the economc
| npact study or the departnent's explanation for not
conducting one available to the public at | east 20 days
before a public hearing. 1In a letter dated January 23,
2026, then Board Chair Barbara Flynn-Currie requested

t hat DCEO conduct an economni c inpact study of this
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rul emaki ng proposal. The Board specifically requested
a response no |ater than February 23, 2026.

DCEO submtted a response on April 7,
2026, providing a qualitative discussion of the
proposed rule and its potential economc and small
busi ness i npact rather than a quantitative economc
| npact st udy.

| s there anyone present today who would
like to offer testinmony or coment on the Board's
request for a study and DCEO s response?

(No audi bl e response.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER MO SAN:  Seei ng and heari ng
none -- or I'msorry. |Is there anyone el se who w shes
to testify or provide any comments today?

(No audi bl e response.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER MO SAN:  Hearing none, would

it -- I would like to go off the record briefly.
(Di scussion off the record.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER MO SAN: We are back on the
record following a brief recess for procedural matters.
| will address a few remaining admnistrative itens
bef ore concl udi ng today's heari ng.

A transcript of today's hearing is

expected to be avail able by Thursday, June 18, 2026,
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and will be posted to COOL upon receipt, consistent
with 35 IIl. Admi n. Code 102.108(b). There will be an
opportunity for posthearing witten comments within
14 days after receipt of the transcript. Unless
ot herwi se provi ded by order of the Board or hearing
of ficer, when the Board receives the transcript, we
will issue a hearing officer order confirmng the
deadline for posthearing coments. Filings with the
Board, whet her paper or electronic, nust also be served
on the hearing officer and on those persons on the
service list. Before filing, please check on COOL or
with the board's clerk to ensure you have the nost
recent version of the service |ist.

Are there any other matters that need
to be addressed on the record at this tinme?

(No audi bl e response.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER MO SAN:  Hearing none, | would
| i ke to thank everyone for their participation today,
and the hearing is adjourned.

(WHEREUPON, the above-entitl ed
proceedi ngs were adjourned at

9: 50 AM)
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STATE OF ILLINO S )
) SS.
COUNTY OF DUPAGE )

M chael Duffy, being first duly sworn, on oath
says that he is a Certified Electronic Reporter doing
business in the city of Chicago, county of Cook, and
state of Illinois.

That he reported the proceedings had at the
foregoing Illinois Pollution Control Board neeting and
that the foregoing is a true and correct transcript of
the reported proceedi ngs so taken aforesaid and

contains all the proceedings had at said neeting.

WesboufkLpfy
M chael J. Duffy

Certified Electronic Reporter
Notary Public
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